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The White & Leonard building, historically identified as the Joseph Bergen commercial 

block, is a prominent three-story, six-bay brick structure that anchors the northeast 

comer of West Main Street and St. Peter's Street in the center of Salisbury's historic 

business district. Dated to 1887 by an inscribed marble stone that is fixed above the 

third floor windows, the commercial block is distinguished by a pressed brick facade 

highlighted by two series of arched window openings that light the second and third 

floors. Marble keystones and impost blocks accent soldier course round brick arches. 

The top of the wall is finished with a bold corbelled brick cornice that rises in the center 

as a cross gable. 

The chain of title research for this property traces its ownership back to 1869 

and refers to it in various ways. The property, formerly the real estate of Oliver 

Tilghman and called the "Daniel Davis lot," was sold in that year to James Cannon for 

$5,000. The 1877 Lake, Griffing, and Stevenson atlas indicates a substantial structure 

improved the property, and eight years later the Sanborn Insurance map company 

documented that a combination house and store building was located here. However, 

on October 17, 1886, a fire that started in a livery stable on Dock Street spread 

throughout the entire downtown leveling every business and residential structure other 

than the eight-year old courthouse. Two months following the fire James and Lydia 
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Cannon sold their interest in the comer property to Joseph Bergen. The following 

spring, on March 26, 1887, the Salisbury Advertiser, announced that 

Mr. J. Bergen is making preparations for building on the comer of Main 
and St. Peter's streets. His house will be of press brick front, two stories 
high, with mansard roof. It will front Main St. 45 feet and extend back 
90 feet. Messrs. Abdell and Drain have the contract for erecting the 
building. 

Sometime during the construction process, Joseph Bergen decided to extend his 

building three full stories instead of two. The 1888 Sanborn Insurance Company map 

indicates that the new Bergen building had a divided first floor with a stair rising in the 

center of the structure. On the east side was a jewelry store and on the west side was a 

drugstore. Three years following the construction of the new brick commercial block, 

the property was sold by trustee Robert P. Graham in the wake of a Circuit Court case. 

Albert Gottschalk purchased the Bergen building for $8,100. The comer commercial 

block remained in Gottschalk family hands until 1911 when it was acquired by E. Riall 

White. The property has been the long-term location of the business of White & 

Leonard Office Supplies. 
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city, town Salisbury 
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city, town Baltinore state and zip code MD 
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Condition 
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Survey No. ~n-261 

Prepare both a summary paragraph and a general description of the resource and its 
various elements as it exists today. 

Commonly known as the White & Leonard building, and historically identified as the 
Joseph Bergen building, the three-story, ell-shaped brick commercial block is located at 
the comer of West Main Street and St. Peter's Street on the downtown plaza of Salisbury, 
Wicomico County, Maryland. The building faces south. 

Erected in the spring of 1887, the three-story, six-bay commercial block extends 
deeply into the Main Street lot and is covered by a low sloping shed roof disguised by a 
cross-gabled front elevation and stepped parapet side elevations. 

The south (main) facade is a six-bay elevation with four brick pilasters dividing 
the wall into three evenly spaced sections. The first floor storefront has been completely 
altered with mid twentieth century glass display windows. A marble beltcouse stretches 
across the wall immediately above the altered storefront. The second floor is pierced by 
six arched window openings evenly spaced across the wall surface. The soldier course 
round arches are accented with marble keystones and impost blocks on the sides of each 
arch. The single-pane sash windows follow the arched form, and the upper sash included 
a perimeter row of colored glass panes. The third floor is pierced by a series of smaller 
single-pane sash windows also fitted in round arched openings. Marble keystones and 
impost blocks highlight the third floor arches as well, and small colored glass panes 
distinguish the perimeter of each upper sash. Stretching across the base of each window 
is a marble beltcouse. The top of the wall is finished with a heavy corbelled brick 
cornice, which rises in the center as a cross gable. Centered in the gable front is a marble 
datestone inscribed, "1887." Fixed atop the gable is a metal weathervane. 

The west (side) elevation is an asymmetrical facade laid in seven-course common 
bond. An assortment of six-over-one and four-over-one sash windows light the second 
and third floors. Rising on the northwest (rear) comer is a squarish brick furnace flue. 
The top of the wall is finished with a stepped parapet. 

The first floor interior has been entirely reworked as retail and office spaces. The 
upper floors of the building were not seen. 
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Specific dates Spring 1887 Builder/ Architect Contractor R. D. Abdell 
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Level of Significance: 
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Prepare both a summary paragraph of significance and a general statement of history and 
support. 

The White & Leonard building, historically identified as the Joseph Bergen commercial 
block, is a prominent three-story, six-bay brick structure that anchors the northeast comer 
of West Main Street and St. Peter's Street in the center of Salisbury's historic business 
district. Dated to 1887 by an inscribed marble stone that is fixed above the third floor 
windows, the commercial block is distinguished by a pressed brick facade highlighted by 
series of arched window openings that light the second and third floors. Marble keystone 
and impost blocks accent the soldier course round brick arches. The top of the wall is 
finished with a bold corbelled brick cornice that rises in the center as a cross gable. Fixed 
atop the cross gable is metal weathervane. 

The White & Leonard building is a significant fixture in the downtown business 
district with its prominent comer location. The three-story, pressed brick facade retains 
its basic integrity and therefore deserves listing in Category A, which identifies buildings 
that must be retained due to their architectural and historical significance. 

The chain of title research for this property traces its ownership back to 1869 and 
refers to it in various ways. The property, formerly the real estate of Oliver Tilghman and 
called the "Daniel Davis lot," was sold in that year to James Cannon for $5,000. (1) 
1/462) The 1877 Lake, Griffing, and Stevenson atlas map indicates a substantial 
structure improved the property(2), and eight years later the Sanborn Insurance map 
company documented that a combination house and store building was located here. (3) 
However, on October 17, 1886, a fire that began in a livery stable on Dock Street spread 
throughout the entire downtown leveling every business and residential structure other 
than the eight-year old courthouse. Two months following the fire James and Lydia 
Cannon sold their interest in the comer property to Joseph Bergen. (4) 
The following spring, on March 26, 1887, the Salisbury Advertiser, announced that 

(Continued) 
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8.1 SIGNIFICANCE (Continued) 
White & Leonard Building, WI-2~1 
Salisbury, Wicomico County, Maryland 

Mr. J. Bergen is making preparations for building on the comer of 
Main and St. Peter's streets. His house will be of press brick front, 
two stories high, with mansard roof. It will front Main St. 45 feet 
and extend back 90 feet. Messrs. Abdell and Drain have the contract 
for erecting the building. (5) 

The 1888 Sanborn Insurance Company map indicates that the new Bergen 
building had a divided first floor with a stair rises in the center of the structure. On the 
east side was a jewelry store and on the west side was a drugstore. Three years following 
the construction of the new brick commercial block, the property was sold by trustee 
Robert P. Graham in the wake of a Circuit Court case. (6) Albert Gottschalk purchased 
the Bergen building for $8,100. The comer commercial block remained in Gottschalk 
family hands until 1911 when it was acquired by E. Riall White.(7) The property has 
been the long-term location of the business of White & Leonard Office 
Supplies. 

1 Wicomico County Land Record, TF, Jr. 1/462, Wicomico County Courthouse. 

2 Lake, Griffing, and Stevenson Atlas, 1877, Salisbury. 

3 Sanborn Insurance Map Company, 1885, Salisbury. 

4 Wicomico County Land Record, FMS 2/10, Wicomico County Courthouse. 

5 Salisbury Advertiser, March 26, 1887, Wicomico County Free Library. 

6 Wicomico County Land Record, FMS 5/500, Wicomico County Courthouse. 

7 Wicomico County Land Record, EAT 76/199, Wicomico County Courthouse. 



WI-261 
White & Leonard Building 
Comer of West Main Street and St. Peters 
Salisbury, Wicomico County, Maryland 
Chain of title 

1337/421 

5/10/1993 

Will Book 
JAH 1/91 

1/8/1932 

JWTS 280/531 

6/11/1946 

EAT 76/199 

7/31/1911 

Edward R. White, III (Personal Representative of Edward 
R. White, Jr. (Died 6/1/1991) 
"Plat of E. Riall White Property, 2/18/1946, JWS 263/93 

Last Will and Testament of E. Riall White 

to 

Edward R. White, Jr. 

Item 2 

Edward R. White, Jr. et al. 

to 

Vestry of Salisbury Parish 

Joseph Gottschalk, and the Mercantile Trust and Deposit Co. 
of Baltimore 

to 

E. Riall White 

$15,135.00 Purchased at Auction 



WI-261 
White & Leonard Building 
Comer of West Main Street and St. Peters Street 
Salisbury, Wicomico County, Maryland 
Chain of title continued 

FMS 5/500 

3/11/1890 

FMS 2/10 

11/25/1886 

TF, Jr. 1/462 

9/25/1869 

Robert P. Graham, Trustee 

to 

Albert Gottschalk 

$8,100.00 Whereas by a Decree of Circuit Court 1/24/1890 
Moses Ottenheimer and Elly Ottenheimer, 
partners trading as Moses Ottenheimer and Son 
were complainants and Joseph Bergen and 
Rachel Bergen were defendants the above 
named Robert P. Graham was named trustee 

Jam es Cannon 
Lydia R. Cannon 

to 

Joseph Bergen 

$4,100.00 

Samuel A. Graham, Trustee 

to 

Jam es Cannon 

$5,000.00 real estate of Oliver Tilghman 

"Daniel Davis Lot" 
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